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DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT o e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees present their annual report together with the accounts and auditor's report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The academy trust operates fourteen academies in East Sussex, West Sussex, Hampshire, Bournemouth, and
The Isle of Wight and has a combined pupil capacity [PAN] of 5025 and a roll of 4665 in the internal data
collection in July 2021. The difference between the PAN and roll is largely attributable to the historic PAN of three
forms of entry at St Joseph’s CE Junior School (formerly Central C of E Academy).

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum
and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The Trust consists of the following academies:

R N am < IR | X Conversionldatel
All Saints Church of England (C of E) Junior Academy 1 February 2015
St Leonards C of E Academy 1 April 2015

St Paul's C of E Academy 1 August 2016

St Catherine’s College 1 August 2016
Central C of E Academy (now St Joseph's CE Jumor School) 1 November 2016
Christ Church C of E Primary and Nursery Academy 1 May 2017

The March C of E Primary School 1 December 2018
St Columba C of E Primary School 1 January 2020
St John's Meads C of E Primary School 1 February 2020
Lancastrian Infants (now St Joseph's Infant School) 1 January 2021
Sedlescombe C of E Primary School 1 January 2021
St-Blasius Shanklin C of E-Primary Academy 1-May-2021

St Francis Catholic and C of E Primary Academy 1 May 2021

St James' C of E Primary Academy 1 May 2021

The trustees of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are
approved, are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability _
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be

a member.

Trustees' indemnities

The Trust has purchased cover through the Department for Education Risk Protection Arrangement which
includes Trustees' Liability and Employee and Third Party Dishonesty. The cost of these items is not separately
identifiable. Every trustee is indemnified out of the assets of the company against any liability incurred in the
capacity of trustee.




DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees

The Members of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust (DCAT) approve the appointment of trustees to the
Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust (DCAT). The Members shall appoint no fewer than 5 Foundation Directors,
at least one of whom shall be 2 member of the local clergy. The Members shall ensure at all times that the
number of Foundation Directors exceeds the number of other Directors (including any Co-opted Directors). For -
further details on appointment of trustees, see Articles 50A — 52 of the Trust's Articles of Association.

Trustees are appointed taking account of the skills and expertise required to provide strategic direction for the
Trust and to ensure that the Trust satisfies the statutory obligations as set out in the Academy Trust Handbook,
which is published by the Education Skills and Funding Agency. Stated within the Articles of Association, the
number of trustees shall not be less than three and shall not be subject to any maximum.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees

All trustees are provided with statutory information, policies and procedures, agendas and minutes, and financial
reports to enable them to undertake their role as a trustee and have been involved in all aspects of the Board's
activity as it develops. The Trust has provided access to on-line resources with associated training for trustees
and governors of local governing bodies. The Trust's Head of Operations and Governance provides or procures
in-house training as identified.

Organisational structure
The organisational structure of the Trust consists of the:

* Members (currently five members)

* Board of Trustees (currently 10 trustees)

* Local Governing Body or Transition Board for each academy (currently 90 governors)
* Audit and Resources Sub-Committee (from September 2021 now Audit and Risk)

* Education Strategy and Standards Sub-Committee

Figure 1 — DCAT organisational structure

DCAT Structure Chart
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DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The Trust met eight times in the year as a full board to consider a wide range of issues concerned with the
strategic direction and operations of the multi-academy trust (MAT). Due to the worldwide pandemic, several
meetings were held virtually. The Education Strategy and Standards Committee (ESSC) met four times in the
year, considering the quality of education during the pandemic and receiving presentations from Headteachers
and other leaders. The Audit and Resources Committee (A&R) met four times in the year, with a focus on
managing the finances and resources during the challenging period of COVID-19, as well as how we managed
risk during this period. The pay panel met three times during the year.

The Trust reviewed its model Scheme of Delegation in this period with a revised model being rolled out in
September 2021. This was carried out in consultation with the Local Governing Bodies and Headteachers and
agreed delegation for each of its academies. It explains the ways in which the trustees and local governing body
members will fulfil their responsibilities for the leadership and management of the academies, the respective
roles and responsibilities of the directors and the members of the local governing body and the commitments to
each other to ensure the success of the academies. The local governing bodies or equivalents and academies
operate within the limits stipulated in the Schemes of Delegation, which require budgets, pay review decisions,
and some leadership post appointments to be approved by the trustees.

The trustees are accountable to external government agencies including the Charity Commission and the
Department for Education (including any successor bodies) for the quality of the education they provide, and they
are required to have systems in place through which they can assure themselves of quality, safety and good
practice.

Day-to-day management at academy level is delegated to the Headteacher and Senior Leadership Teams in
each academy. They are supported by the central MAT team. The current executive team, in addition to the Chief

Executive Officer consists of a Deputy Chief Executive Officer (education). The Trust has a Chief Financial
Officer who reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer.

Headteachers and Business Managers within the academies work closely with the central MAT officers.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the trustees and senior management team as shared on

page 1 of this document.

Remuneration of the Executive team and centre team is set at an individual level and the trustees have taken
external professional advice which includes benchmarking and market sector trends. Progression is linked to
performance management which is carried out with board involvement. The total remuneration package includes
employer pension contributions.

The Trust Board always bears in mind the charitable status of the Trust and in recognition of this fact, the Trust
receives funding under a funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education. It therefore bases
remuneration decision making on benchmarking to ensure sector parity and that salaries are fair, reasonable,
and proportionate.




DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials

during the relevant period 2
Full-time equivalent employee number 1.80

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% -
1%-50% 2
51%-99% -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time 744
Total pay bill ‘ 13,255,462

Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

Engagement with employees
The Trust engages with its employees directly and through recognised employee unions. Specifically:
* All Local Governing Bodies have staff representation
* The Chief Executive Officer and wider executive and centre team regularly communicates with
employees, directly and through Headteachers and other senior leaders within the schools.
* The Trust has a recognition agreement with the major teaching and support staff unions, and arranges at
least annual joint consultative meetings to address collective matters
* The Trust has an Equalities Policy which demonstrates its commitment to employment, and the
continued employment, of those who are or become disabled.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Diocese of Chichester Education Trust (DoCET) is the umbrella organisation under which the Diocese of
Chichester Academy Trust (DCAT) operates. As the academies are Church of England schools, designated as
such, the trustees are also accountable through DoCET to the Chichester Diocesan Board of Education ("the
DBE”") and the Bishop of Chichester ("the Bishop”) to ensure that the academies are conducted as Church of
England schools.

The members of DCAT agree the appointment of trustees to the board of the Trust. DCAT has five members,
including the current chairman of the Trust board, to ensure good communication between the two boards. The
chairman of the DBE is currently the chairman of trustees of DCAT and a member of DCAT.

There is a relationship with the Diocese Board of Finance (DBF) which has historically provided a financial
contribution to the Trust. No financial contribution has been provided since 2017-18.

DCAT is a sponsor organisation, as approved by the Department for Education. Three of the academies in the
Trust have been sponsored by the trust to convert to academies to address the issues of underperformance
inherent prior to conversion. The Trust received a further four academies which were ‘re-brokered’ from a
neighbouring Trust at the instigation of the Department for Education. Therefore, currently 50% are sponsored
and 50% are non-sponsored convertor academies which have joined the Trust by choice.




DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

The Trust has a clearly stated vision which is helping every child achieve their God-given potential. This is
underpinned by the bible verse ‘| have come so that they may have life and have it to the full’ John 10:10 which
is also at the heart of the Church of England’s vision for Education.

The Trust was set up with 4 stated aims. These are:
1. Developing the whole child means pupils achieve and maximise their potential
2. Continued development of staff is valued and improves education for young people
3. All schools are improving and perform above national expectations
4. The distinct Christian identity of each academy develops and is celebrated

Objectives, strategies and activities

The objectives during the seventh year of operation have been to continue to develop the Trust as a fully
functioning multi-academy trust and limited company in line with statutory requirements and Department for
Education best practice. The Trust is in the fourth year of our seven-year strategy which targets, by 2025, being a
‘leading’ Trust as defined by Sir David Carter’s (former National Schools Commissioner) matrix. To support this
the Trust has grown this year with 5 new schools joining.

To support the conversion and establishment of additional schools as academies, and to pursue opportunities for
further conversions or associate partnerships with other schools and Trusts, the Trust is closely working with a
number of schools wishing to convert to academy status within the Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust, with a
small number on track to join during the 2021-22 academic year as set out in our agreed growth strategy.

In this period, to support our recent growth the Trust has developed its operation of business at the centre by:

* having an agreed strategy for growth which has been shared and supported by our Diocese and the
Regional Schools Commissioner office, this includes our Associate Offer

* paying due regard to the Diocese Board of Education (DBE) Academy Policy and accompanying
frequently asked questions documentation for schools/governing bodies

* securing Trust capacity grants from the DfE which have allowed us to fund a comprehensive review of
our systems and processes across the Trust in advance of growth. This has been rolled out in
September 2021

* strengthened our centre team offer by bringing our Human Resources (HR) function in-house, adding
capacity to our finance team who provide finance support for three quarters of our schools and,
excluding our DCEO, have doubled the school improvement capacity

* established working manuals (handbooks) for school improvement and finance to complement our
general and governance handbooks

Public benefit
The trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit issued by the
Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties.

In setting our objectives and planning our activities over the past year, the trustees have given careful
consideration to the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit. The trustees are satisfied that due
regard has been given to the public benefit guidance published by the Charity Commission, as required by
Section 17 of the Charities Act 2011.

The Trust continues the historic foundation of the schools and their religious designation as Church of England
schools.

The trustees and the local governing bodies recognise their responsibility towards the common good, not just of
the academies for whom the company is responsible, but of all the Churches, other schools, families, and
communities in the areas served by the academy trusts.




DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report
Achievements and performance
All Saints CE Junior Academy (converted 1 February 2015)

Summary_ -
In this period the school has worked hard to build upon the strong external data (2019) helping the school deliver
a high quality of education during COVID-19 lockdowns and to deliver a wide, enriching curriculum. The latest
data includes the school achieving a ranking that puts them in the top 4% of schools for pupil progress.

The Headteacher continues to lead the Trust wide training and development work (CPD).

e - Last published DfEdata B
Progiess scofe in roading, writing and maths o
Reading Writing Haths
| Aboveaverage ‘ 2-§j| || “Aboveaverags 17 ] | Aboveavarags 2.3 |
wsreacow details @ Mogg seoeedetalls @ tore scare detaits €
Puplls meﬂing cexpected standard In reading, wﬂllny Pupilz a:hlcvtnsat a h]yher standard in rc:ldlng.
ond maths © writing and maths ©

Scheol 8%
SO Moy L)
ireorape
EnGara bokdaih 3 "%

Ofsted rating_ | Good } SIAMSs rating |_Good
St Leonards CEP Academy (converted 1 April 2015)

Summary
In this penod the school has appointed a new expenenced Executive Headteacher and a new Head of School.
The school is building on improvements made since the last Cfsted in January 2018 determined to reach a
'‘Good’ Ofsted judgement for the first time.

__Last published DIE data R

Progress score in reading, writing and maths ©

Reading Writing Maths

[ Aboveaverage 2.‘51 [_Abonamgc 17 | | Aboveaverage 2.3 |
tose scare details @ tose scare datalls @ More score detats @

i ATt e e e T it R i e e — =

Pupils meeting expected standardin reading, writing Pupils achieving at a higher standard In reading,

and maths @ writingandmaths 7]
Local metorsy tecat mesorty (N 8%
avtingh anctats

Tpariaange [ ] W%

Ofstedrating | Requires SIAMSs rating Good
__| Improvement ,




DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

$t Paul’s CE Academy (converted 1 August 2016)

“Summary

The school voluntarily converted to academy status in 2016 as St Paul’s was designated a ‘Good’ school at the
point of conversion into the Trust. The anticipated inspection took place in March 2019 and secured “Good' for
all areas of judgement The outcomes at KS2 continue fo improve and are now significantly above national
ave:ia_qe. The progress rates have been transformed and disadvantaged groups are performing strongly in the
academy.

B , Last published DfE data
Progress score in reading, writing and maths ©
Reading Wilting Maths
{ Average 1.2 ] [ Average: 05 ]}

Pupits meeting expected standard Inveading, writing Pupils achieving at ahigher standardin reading,

and maths @ weiting and maths ©@
Senost 83% Schook 14%
vl merdy | 63% rocat oty [ 6%
g averagy
Enalond asecomn ] 65% Engiie averags ‘11%
| Ofsted rating | Good | SIAMs rating | Good
St Catherine’s College (converted 1 Auqust 2016)__ -
Summary

In this period, the school secured a ‘Good’ Ofsted judgement which reported the strong direction of travel led by
the Headteacher and his team.

The school is locking forvard to the resumption of external, published data as intemal data for the past iwo years
indicated that the school is now performing above national at every level.

Last published DfE data
Progress 8 score @ EnteringEBacc’®
Of the 199 pupils at the end of key stage 4 in this schoot. 195 are
Included in this measire. Sthesit o)
| o) "“"’“um'“'*L”’
Erghard i s [ 40%
o —
Stayingin education or entering employment @ Grade 5 orabovein Enclish & maths GCSEs @
Saroes I e
Yocal medrty 4
F A
{Ergtard owsage ::: 43%
Ofstedrating | Good | SIAMs rating 1 Good




DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

St Joseph’s - previously Central Coft Academy (converted 1 November 2016) _

Summary

In this penod the school continues to improve under strong executive Ieadershlp over the Junior and Infant
provisions. The schoo! is building upon significantly improved attainment outcomes. Intemal data shows that
progress has improved.

In this period the school is building on its previous Ofsted judgement of ‘Requires Improvement’ with good
leadership and behaviour and the ‘Good’ SIAMs inspection.

Thes school changed its name {o St Joseph's.

Last published DfE data

Progress scorein reading, writing and maths @

Reading . Writing Maths

Well below average 2.9 | Belowaverage BN 2]

Magessaredetals © Mage searsdeiails © Msie sepsc detaits @

Piipils meoting expected standard in reading, writing Puplls achieving at ahigher standard In readlng,

and maths © writing and maths ©
Boost 61%
texa) arncity 63%
Engtard groragn - Iﬁsi Ergand g : "%
| Ofsted rating | Requires Improvement | SIAMs rating ] | Good
Chnst Church CE anarv & Nurserv Academv (convelrted 1 Mav 2017}

[ N TN B A tsl\jmmnw P T N A i A T w?.‘u;

7 In thns period the school secured a ‘Good Ofsted rating, maintaining their Outstanding judgement for the nursery
provision. The school was praised for its leaders and staff who ‘work with determination to ensure that every
pupi! in this school succeeds’.

The strong model of co-Headship continues to embed. The last published data is strong in terms of attainment.

o _ __Last published DfE data )
Progress score in reading, writing and maths ©
Reading Writing Maths
| Average 01 | | Average 08'{ | Average. 0.4 |
t:!snmm.dﬁaib 7] oo scaredetalls © Hege sore detalls @

- - - - - - - . - - - —_—

Pupils meeting expected standardin reading, writing Puplls achieving at a higher standard in reading,

and maths @ writing and maths @
Sro 1Y Scoc I 4%
Loes! sty 63% Loca) aisfisiy %
g mmsgr
S o] IR L Enguca wage | ] 11%
| Ofsted rating | Good | SIAMsratng =~ | Outstanding

-10-



DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The March CE Primary School (converted 1 December 2018)

Summary

The academy’s 2019 pupil outcomes at KS2 expected standard are very sfrong, with 86% of children achieving
expected standard in Reading, Writing and Maths combined. This is the strongest performance in Chichester for
this measure. This was also a significant improvement on the then previous year's results of 64%.

Progress is strong particularly in Writing and Maths.

The local goveming body chair is leading our Trust-wide Chairs of Governors hub.

_ Last published DIE data
Progress score In reading, wrting and maths @
Readirey Wrting
C— me )

B T — . -

Pupils moeting expected standard Inreading, writing Pupils achieving st ahigher: ltmdmlimeadlng.

and maths © writing and maths ©
e 23
\itat aPisty (ALY
wuw-a':: . — ‘ ]ass [T pa— jns
Ofstedrating | Good | SIAMSs rating { Good
[St Columba C of E Primary_School (transferred 1 January 2020)

Summary - "' 1
The academy was re-brokered to DCAT from another Trust. It has undergone a period of change. Legacy
outcomes are weak across the board.

The Trust has in place a transition board which provides Trust-led challenge and support for the school. The
school is cumrently rated as 'Inadequate’ by Ofsted and is incrementally improving.

Last published DfE data _
Progress score in reading, writing andmaths ©

Reading Maths

Well below average G 1 \’tfell below auerage '3 3 Wefll below ave.rage

Pupils meeting expected standard inreading, wtiting Pupils achieving at a higher standardinreading,

and maths © writing and maths ©
Sohsl 2% Schoot | %
Lo sanony 68% Lomst oy 13%
Evoragn dromags
Engiana ancrage ] 65% Enoiand et i :13&
Ofstedrating | Inadequate | SIAMSs rating | Good
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

St John's Meads C of E Primary School {converted 1 February 2020)

Summary

The school continues to improve and is being well led by the Headteacher and her team.

Attainment did improve in 2019 to meet the national average. However, progress remains below or well below
average.

_ 'Last published DIE data _
Progress score In reading, writing and maths ©
Reading Wating Maths
Well below average 4.9 l_etwl avarago -2.9 ]
tiansce dorails @ | Mo seoredetaits ©

Pupiis meeting expacted standard in reading, writing Puplisachioving at ahlgher standard inreading,

and maths © writingand maths ©@
Schack 6% Sohoot ff 3%
tvjm;l 63% el By 8%
Bragh e
gy 10eapo | 169% EnGInd purage :lﬂ
|_Ofsted rating [ Good |_SIAMs rating | Qutstanding
Sedlescombe CE Primary School (converted 1 January 2021)
Summary

Attainment improved in 2013 to meet the national average. However, progress remains below or well below
average.

The Headteacher and her team are leading the school well and are engaged with the support provided by the
Trust.

B Last published DIE data

Progress score in reading, writing and maths @
Reading Wiriting Maths

1 Average 47 ] [Avemge 47 ] ‘[ Betowaverage 2.3 ]
Boe seare detalls @ LMoee score defalts @ Blore seore details @

Pupils meeting expected standard inreading, writing Pupils achieving at ahigher standard in reading,
and maths © writing and maths @

Sovw [ 3%
L) ety &%

Gy §
Begtand averige jlﬁ

| Ofsted rating | Good | SIAMsrating | OQuistanding
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DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Lancastrian Infant School — now St Joseph's Infants (converted 1 January 2021)

[ ~ Summary

“Lancastrian (riow St Joseph's lnfantsj is a Good Ofsted rated school and joined DCAT dﬁﬁhg this ﬁéﬁgd: T
As an infant school with no KS2, there is no DfE published data for this school.

~ Last published DfEdata

n/a

| Ofsted rating. | Good | SIAMs rating______ [ nfa

St Blasius Shanklin CofE Primary Academy (converted 1 May 2021)
] Summary.

St Blasius joined DCAT from another Diocesan MAT (Portsmouth and Winchester Diocese Academy Trust)
which has now closed.

The last published data (2019) show that the school was underperforming with low attainment.

The school has a historic Ofsted rating of ‘Good’.

e _Last published DfE data 7

Progress score inreading, writing and maths @

Readang Yériting Maths

Imnverage 7 19, l | Belowaverage 2.5 n I Average. T gl,ﬁj
Mesesepizdetsils © More seorc detals @ Motastoiednis @
Pupils meeting expected standard inreading, writing IPupils achleving at 2 higher standard in reading,
and maths © writingand maths ©

fichost 43% Zonay 3%
Lot navey 59% wen soee; i 4%
Engwas wwap | _'55" Engand ez jll‘
| Ofsted rating | Good | SIAMSs rating 1 Good
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—|St-James’ joined DCAT from another Diocesan MAT - (Porlsmoufh and Winchester Diocese Academy Tlust) ’

DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

St Francis Catholic and CofE anary Academy {converted 1 May 2021)_
~_ Summary ' )
St Francis joined DCAT from another Diocesan MAT {Portsmouth and Winchester Diocese Academy Trust)

which has now closed.

The last published data (2019) shows that the school was underperforming with low attainment and weak
progress.

The school has a historic Ofsted rating of inadequate’ but early indications show an improved direction of travel.

o Last published DfE data ~
Progress score fmeadtng. writing and maths ©
Reading Viriting Maths
sge_ s |
wmﬁmm 0 More sgore ealls © Morescoredaiails ©
Pupils meeting expected standard inreading, writing Puplis achieving at a higher standardin reading,
and maths @ writing and maths @
Sehith 39% Senect | 0%
Local hordy % Loca ausharty
avrage e
England avraga }65% Engudpresgn ||
| Ofsted rating’ { Inadequate | SiAMs rating i | Satisfactory
St James” CE Primary Academy (converted 1 May 2021) - o

Summary

which has now closed.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the
Board of Trustees continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details
regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.

Financial review

The principal source of income continues to be grant income from the Department for Education (DfE) via the
Education Skills and Funding Agency (ESFA). The grants received during the year ended 31 August 2021 and
the associated expenditure are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA and other agencies. These grants are shown in the
Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund
balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets.

The deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is recognised on the balance sheet in accordance
with FRS 102. This is a nation-wide occurrence for Multi Academy Trusts and not particular to DCAT. At 31
August 2021, the deficit was £12,233,000. This compares to a £5,932,000 deficit in 2020. The existence of the
pension scheme deficit does not mean an immediate liability crystallises and is addressed over a series of years
through pension contributions recommended by the pension scheme actuaries during subsequent triennial
valuations of the scheme. Note 20 details the assumptions and movements during the year on the Scheme.

The funds balances as at 31 August 2021 for the academy trust were as follows:

Restricted general funds (excluding pension|£2,396,118
reserve)

Fixed asset fund £1,264,646
Unrestricted funds £1,180,232

The in-year net movement in revenue funds was £1,478,368 which represents the change in balance of
restricted general funds (excluding the pension reserve) and unrestricted funds.

Covid-19 has not materially changed the financial performance of the Trust during this period.

Reserves policy
The trustees of the Trust require a reserves’ policy in order to protect their operations, establishing reserves that

protect the operation of the Trust and contribute towards its smooth running. This is good practice and forms part
of its overall financial control and governance framework. Levels of reserves which are too high tie up funds
which should be spent on current activities for the benefit of the children.

The reserves policy assists in strategic planning by considering how. new projects or activities will be funded,
informs the budget process by considering whether reserves need to be utilised during the financial year, or built
up for future projects and informs the budget and risk management process by identifying any areas of
uncertainty in future income streams.

General reserves are to be maintained at a level so that when added to any current reserves set up by the
academy, they are at least 5% of the gross income of the academies.

In 2020-21 DCAT reserves were 14% of the gross income of the academies. However, 9.7% were restricted
funds so the spendable figure was 4.8%. We recognise that this 14% is higher than 5% and are actively seeking
to bring this figure down by using the spendable figure to fund projects including Covid-19 recovery work.
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The Trust has adopted the following principles:

* Reserves must have a specific purpose related to future spending or covering current and future risks;

* The size of the reserves should balance the benefit of current spending with the risk the reserves cover;

* The purpose of the reserves should be transparent and maintain the link with the purpose for which the
income was given;

* The purpose of the reserves should ensure that sufficient resources are available so that unexpected
events can be accommodated without causing current year problems, generating a deficit or cash flow
issues, and;

* Whilst the DfE require reserves to be limited to a level where its use in the future is known, there is an
overriding need to ensure that value for money is achieved.

The following purposes are considered appropriate for a Multi-academy Trust:

e Current reserves that are established to manage known risks which are not insurable or where
insurance does not provide value for money;

* Equalisation reserves set up to smooth out irregular spending;

* Specific capital reserves established in order to fund capital expenditure and other investments that
would not be affordable if financed from a single year's funding;

* General reserve to provide for unexpected and unpredictable needs, and;

* Cashflow management reserves used to enable variable cash demands across the Trust or specific
parts of the Trust to be managed.

- Our overarching view is that reserves above the 5% of the gross income of academies should be used to support
the quality of education in our schools and/or to develop the Iearning environment and infrastructure of our
schools.

Further detail is included within the Reserves policy.

Details of funds held at the year end are included within the financial review section above.

Disclosure of funds in deficit is also included in the Funds Note in the financial statements (note 18).

Investment policy

The Board is committed to ensuring that all funds under its control are administered in a way that promotes best
practice, good stewardship and minimises risk. As the Trust grows and it is more likely that cash flow variations
mean that it may be temporarily holding balances, for example specific capital projects, or pending decisions on
future conversions, cash balances may at times warrant consideration of investment, however, the Trust does not
currently consider the investment of surplus funds as a primary activity. As the Trust grows, it does expect to
maintain larger balances and has therefore contracted a Wealth Manager, Carpenter Box LLP, to provide
investment advice to the trustees in line with the administration objectives outlined above.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those related to the

operations and finances of the Trust and are satisfied that systems and procedures are in place to mitigate our
exposure to the major risks. The Audit and Resources Committee, which met four times during the year,
reviewed the Risk Register at each meeting and made recommendations for changes.
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A risk register has been established which identifies risks to the Trust and actions to mitigate the risks. The Audit
and Resources Committee has terms of reference which include reviewing the risk register at least three times
per year and making recommendations as necessary to the board on changes that may be required. In addition,
the Board itself will conduct an annual review of the risk register.

The Trustees consider the principal risks facing the Trust to be:

* Reputational - failure to ensure that each school acts in accordance with the Trust's policies and meets
its obligations with respect to safeguarding and health and safety

* Educational - failure to improve/maintain the quality of education in our schools

* Growth - failure to convert suitable schools into the Trust

* Pandemic (COVID-19) - failure to ensure that there are appropriate recovery plans in place

Einancial and risk management objectives and policies
The Trust manages its cash resources, including sufficient working capital, so that all its operating needs are met
without the need for short-term borrowing.

Fundraising
The Trust seeks out grants and other income streams but does not currently use any external fundraisers, or
engage in direct fundraising activities.

Plans for future periods

Building upon and consolidating the recent Trust expansion, the Trust is cautiously pursuing further opportunities
to expand in line with its seven-year growth strategy, including attracting Good and Outstanding schools, which it
plans to achieve initial growth within the next two years. The associate model the Trust has developed will be
used in the next audit period. Securing achieving additional schools is helpful in building even more in-house
support for our schools and achieving economies of scale.

To reflect the changed nature of DCAT, a priority for the coming academic year is to ensure that the Trust has a
financial model that is sustainable, fair and transparent. To support this, the following success criteria have been
agreed (numbering relates to the Trust Priorities 2021-22 documentation):

2.1 ]A financial model is ready for launch by September 2022 that is evidence based, consulted
upon and supports the sustainability of the Trust

2.2 |The Trust grows by an equivalent of 4 forms of entry (with necessary capacity)
2.3 Stafﬂn_g capacity is added to support recent and future growth
2.4 [There is clarity for all on the value the MAT provides

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
The Trust does not act as a custodian trustee and hold funds on behalf of others.
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Auditor

In so far as the trustees are aware: _

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware; and

- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The auditors, Moore (South) LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. On behalf of the

Members, the Trust tendered for audit services in early 2019 and are scheduled 1o tender again in early 2022.

The lrustees' report, incorporating a strategic repori, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on 16 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

The Venerable LT Irvi’ne-éapel
Chair of Trustees
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DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Diocese Of Chichester Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the chief executive officer, as accounting
officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between Diocese Of Chichester Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are
also responsible for reporting to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal
control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met eight times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
The Venerable L T Irvine-Capel (Chair of Trustees) 8 8
Mrs F A Chalk (Appointed 4 November 2020 and resigned 29

January 2021) 3 4
Mr T Cristin 8 8
Mrs AF Hamill 6 8
Mr P Hepburn (Appointed 4 November 2020) 7 7
Mr T J Manly 8 8
Mr W I G Payne : 8 8
Mrs S D Phillips (Appointed 4 November 2020) 6 7
Mr J W Stanbridge (Appointed 4 November 2020) 7 7
Mr N Taunt (Chair of Education Strategy and Standards Committee) 8 8

Mr RV Webb (Chair of Audit & Resources) (Appointed 4 November
2020)
Reverend N Kinrade (Appointed 10 November 2021)

~J
~J

The Trust Board has recruited 5 new Trustees over the year. This recruitment was skills based and the new
Trustees professional experience (e.g. chartered accountant, facilities manager, governance, HR and IT)
complimented the skills of the existing Trustees, who have mainly education experience. The new Trustees
undertook an induction programme, supported by the National Governors Association. Archdeacon Luke Irvine-
Capel was appointed as new Chair of the Trust Board on 13 September 2019. The Trust undertook a skills audit
which identified the skills and additional training required.

The evaluation is recorded in the Trust SEF and discussed with the Regional Schools Commissioner (RSC) at
least annually.

The Trust have a Compliance Manager who ensures the Trust and constituent academies have in place and
abide by the required policies. The Trust, through the Compliance Manager, has continued to identify further
Trust-wide policies that it will draft for Board approval, alongside the review of the operational academy policies
to ensure they are consistent and current.

In conjunction with the risk register, the policies provide a framework for financial and risk management. Risk
registers within individual academies, that mirror the structure of the corporate register, have been rolled out and
feed into the Trust's overall risk register. The Trust has commissioned an external review of risk during term 2 of
the new academic year.
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Audit and Resources Committee

The Audit and Resource Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees, and the trustees met four
times during 2020-21. Its purpose is to:

* maintain an oversight of the academy trust's finance and governance; review risk management and
internal control;

* review the value for money framework;
* consider multi-academy trust central staffing and other operational matters.

The trustees of the committee report its findings annually to the Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical
element of the trust's annual reporting requirements.

The budgets are prepared on an annual basis by academies for approval by the Audit and Resources
Committee. The Trust is minded to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook. Management
accounts and cashflow forecasts are regularly produced with a narrative report on finance and operational
issues for board meetings.

The Local Governing Bodies have delegated responsibilities on behalf of the Trust Board. The Trust Scheme of
Delegation has been reviewed this year and implemented with effect from 1st September 2021. There are 2
schemes of delegation — minimum and maximum. The scheme of delegation that each academy is allocated is
determined by the academy’s POINTER rating, determined by the Academy Improvement Review meeting.
Copies of the schemes of delegation are available on the Trust website.

Mr N Morris served as an associate member of the Audit and Resource Committee, attending 2 out of 4 possible
meetings.

Full committee member attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
The Venerable L T Irvine-Capel (Chair of Trustees) 3 4
Mr P Hepburn (Appointed 4 November 2020) 3 3
Mr T J Manly 4 4
Mr W1 G Payne -3 4
Mr N Taunt (Chair of Education Strategy and Standards Committee) 2 2
Mr R V Webb (Chair of Audit & Resources) (Appointed 4 November

2020) 3 3

Review of value for money

As accounting officer the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting officer for the academy trust
has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

* continuing to reduce, proportionally to the size of the Trust, the support costs to ensure more funds are
spent on education focussed activities;

* continuing to centralise a number of business and administrative functions, resulting in greater cost and
time efficiency;

¢ carrying out a number of staffing structure reviews and adjusting the staffing structure to better provide
support for educational improvement whilst delivering good value for money.

-
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The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the Diocese Of Chichester
Academy Trust for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual
report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the périod 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
trustees.

The risk and control framework
The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

* comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

* regular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

» setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

* clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

* identification and management of risks.

During the previous financial year, the board of trustees engaged a qualified firm of auditors to carry out the
audit function. The internal auditors report directly to the Audit & Resources committee, and together with
Executive Officers, advise on the principal focus of internal audit for the following 12 months.

Schedule of work was completed as planned and no material issues were raised. Only a number of low-level
issues were highlighted which have since been resolved and will be included in the testing as part of the
2021/22 internal audit schedule.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

testing of purchases systems;

testing of payroll systems;

review of month end procedures;

monitoring and maintenance of fixed asset registers;
review of data and IT systems;

and review of safeguarding and GDPR policies.

® e o o o o

The internal auditor reports to the board of trustees through the audit and resources committee at least three
times a year on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the financial responsibilities of
the board of trustees.
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Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer the chief executive officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

» the work of the internal auditor,

* the work of the external audilor;

« the financial managemen{ and governance self-assessment process;

+ the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the audit and resources commitlee to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 16 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

The Venerable L T Irvine-Capel Mr M Talbot
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under
the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and ESFA.

—Mote,

Mr M Talbot
Accounting Officer

16 December 2021
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The trustees (who are also the direciors of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust for the purposes of company
law) are responsible for preparing the trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and appllcable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are safisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the lrustees are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021, '

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

+ prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transaclions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the charitable company and hence for iaking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriely and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The trustees are respansible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information. included.
on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 16 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Lt Conn

The Venerable LT Irvme Capel
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIOCESE OF
CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2021 which
comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
accounts, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended,;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees' use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Other information includes the trustees' report
(incorporating the strategic report and directors' report) the governance statement and the statement of
regularity, propriety and compliance. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts
or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report (which includes the strategic report and directors' report) for
the financial year for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors' report, included
within the trustees' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the the directors
of the academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the accounts and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is
detailed below.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

The objectives of our audit in respect of fraud, are; to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the accounts due to fraud; to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material
misstatement due to fraud, through designing and implementing appropriate responses to those assessed risks;
and to respond appropriately to instances of fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit. However, the
primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both management and those charged
with governance of the Academy Trust.
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Our approach was as follows:

The engagement partner selected staff for the audit, led by persons who it was deemed had sufficient
experience and who had the required competence and skills to be able to identify or recognise non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

We assessed the risk of irregularities as part of our audit planning, and ongoing review, including those
due to fraud, management override was identified as a significant fraud risk. This is due to the ability to
bypass controls through inappropriate expenditure and accounting policies adopted.

Completeness of income was identified as a significant risk to the audit, as grant income may not be
recognised in accordance with the SORP.

The risk associated with non-disclosure of related party transactions is deemed a significant risk, due to
the number of related parties which could be unknown to the management team and the scrutiny around
related party transactions by the ESFA.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements applicable to the charity and we
considered the most significant to be Academies Accounts Direction, the Companies Act 2006, the
Charity SORP, UK financial reporting standards as issued by the Financial Reporting Council. We
considered how the Academy Trust complies with these requirements by discussions with management
and those charged with governance.

We inquired of management and those charged with governance as to any known instances of non-
compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations. Consideration was also made of
the internal controls in place to mitigate the identified risks.

We assessed the control environment, documenting the systems, controls and processes adopted. The
audit approach incorporated a combination of controls where appropriate, analytical review and
substantive procedures involving tests of transactions and balances. Any irregularities noted were
discussed with management and additional corroborative evidence was obtained as required.

We obtained an understanding and assessed the impact of Covid-19 on the operations of the Academy
Trust and adapted our audit approach accordingly. We enquired and obtained evidence to support the
going concern assumption and reviewed support received through the Coronavirus support schemes,
dovetailed with work undertaken on management override.

To address the risk of fraud through management override we:

performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

tested journal entries to identify any unusual transactions;

tested items of expenditure to ensure that they were valid and appropriate;

confirmed monthly management accounts were reviewed by the board;

assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias;

reviewed the disclosures within the accounts to ensure they meet the requirements of the accounting
standards and relevant legislation.

In response to the risk of irregularities with regards to completeness of income we:

completed analytical work, to include comparison with prior periods;

agreed a sample of income received to supporting documentation and

reviewed minutes of governors meetings and confirmed income sources mentioned were included
correctly within the accounts.
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In response to the risk of irregularities with regards to non-disclosure of related parties we:
» completed analytical work, to include comparison with prior periods;
* obtained confirmation of material balances;
* agreed disclosures to source records, including approval; and
* reviewed minutes of governors meetings.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if

any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they
may involve deliberate concealment or collusion

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's
report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust
and the academy trust's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Louise Hastings (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Moore (South) LLP 220200, /Ry 202 |
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor City Gates

2 - 4 Southgate

Chichester

West Sussex

PO19 8DJ
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 October 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August
2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Diocese of Chichester
Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Diocese of
Chichester Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 February 2015 and the Academies Financial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

* consideration of the evidence supporting the accounting officer's statements on regularity, propriety, and
compliance;
analytical procedures on the general activities of the multi-academy trust;
a review of minutes of committees and board meetings which may be relevant to regularity;
consideration of discussions with key personnel including the accounting officer and governing body;
tests of control have been carried out on a control activity which are relevant to regularity;
substantive testing of individual transactions.
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them.

Muoere_ SounAt ) 1

Reporting Accountant
Moore (South) LLP
City Gates

2 - 4 Southgate
Chichester

West Sussex

PO19 8DJ

- Dated: 22«[12,'24
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Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

- Grants

- Educational operations

Charitable expenditure - transfer from
local authority on conversion

Charitable expenditure - transfer of
existing academy into the trust

Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

F-S

26

26

18

20

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021 2020

£ £ £ £ £

10,622 88,969 914,097 1,013,688 725,195

- 22,284,879 - 22,284,879 17,386,930

698,813 609,517 - 1,308,330 1,304,373

31 - - 31 1,380

709,466 22,983,365

914,097 24,606,928 19,417,878

- 534,954
520,052 23,242,969
(177,831) 298,491

(369,016) 2,942,000

- 534954 269,152
84,496 23,847,517 19,187,842
(41,428) 79232 121,431
(36,621) 2,536,363 528,091

(26,795) 27,018,414

6,447 26,998,066 20,106,516

736,261 (4,035049) 907,650 (2,391,138) (688,638)
(232,346) 543502  (311,156) - -

- (1,835,000) - (1,835,000) (1,951,000)
503,915 (5,326,547) 596,494 (4,226,138) (2,639,638)
676,317 (4,510,335) 668,152 (3,165,866) (526,228)
1,180,232 (9,836,882) 1,264,646 (7,392,004) (3,165,866)
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Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2020

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Grants

- Educational operations

Charitable expenditure - transfer from local
authority on conversion

Charitable expenditure - transfer of existing
academy into the trust

Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

- I I N

26

26

18

20

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2020

£ £ £ £

9,898 35,917 679,380 725,195

- 17,386,930 - 17,386,930

622,025 682,348 - 1,304,373
1,380 - - 1,380

633,303 18,105,195

679,380 19,417,878

- 269,152
352,216 18,812,485
(64,557) 210,782

(53,858) 610,769

- 269,152
23,141 19,187,842
(24,794) 121,431
(28,820) 528,091

233,801 19,903,188

(30,473) 20,106,516

399,502 (1,797,993)

(46,347) 332,388

- (1,951,000)

709,853 (688,638)

(286,041) -

- (1,951,000)

353,165 (3,416,605)

323,162 (1,093,730)

423,812 (2,639,638)

244,340 (526,228)

676,317 (4,510,335)

668,152 (3,165,866)
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DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities _

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme lability
Total net liabilities

Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds

- Fixed asset funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Notes

14

15

16

20

18

18

2021
£ £

278,027

640,686
5,318,219

' 5,958,905

(1,395,936)

4,562,969
4,840,996
(12,233,000)

(7,392,004)

1,264,646
2,396,118
(12,233,000)
(8,572,236)

1,180,232

(7,392,004)

2020

74.574

505,872
3,412,114

e e r——

3,917,986

(1.226,426)

e A st

2,691.560
2,766.134
(5,932,000)

(3,165,866)

668,152
1.421,665
(5,932,000)
(3.842,183)

676,317

(3,165,866)

The accounts on pages 31 10 62 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 16 December 2021

and are signed on their behalf by:

MC){’I N~ (‘r’"‘

The Venerable L T Irvine-Capel
Chair of Trustees

Company Number 09201845
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 21
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2021

31
914,097
(251,328)

628,722
614,583

1,243,305

662,800

1,906,105

3,412,114

5,318,219

2020

£ £

340,789

188,595

529,384
1,380
679,380
(50,870)

629,890

1,159,274

2,252,840

3,412,114
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

11

1.2

1.3

14

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)),
the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern. Thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Conversion to an academy trust

Both the conversion from a state maintained school to an academy trust and the transfer of a new or
existing academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the
school for £nil consideration. The substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on
that basis as set out below.

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion and rebrokerage to the academy trust have been
valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts -
have been recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding amount
recognised in Donations — transfer from local authority on conversion in the Statement of Financial
Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds.
Further details of the transaction are set out in note 26 and note 27.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitiement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability.
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1.5

Accounting policies (Continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entittement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods. facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from
other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it
is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the
accounts until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

Donated fixed assets

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to_measure this reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Expenditure on raising funds .
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

" Accounting policies ' (Continued)

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement
of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset
on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Computer equipment 33% straight line
Fixtures, fittings & equipment 20% straight line
Motor vehicles 25% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in
the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
of services it must provide.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.
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1.10

1.1

1.12

Accounting policies : (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place
and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in
the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and aré updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and
the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as
part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the
statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and
interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other
recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised
gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

"~ The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number
of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed
at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

3 Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 914,097 914,097 679,380
Other donations 10,622 88,969 99,591 45,815
10,622 1,003,066 1,013,688 725,195
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4 Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA grants
General annual grant (GAG) - 17,772,561 . 17,772,561 14,390,668
Other DfE/ESFA grants:
UIFSM - 343,152 343,152 279,802
Pupil premium - 1,469,179 1,469,179 1,263,123
Start up grants ' - 190,000 190,000 -
Teachers pension grant - 635,980 635,980 519,179
Others - 784,484 784,484 706,665
- 21,195,356 21,195,356 17,159,437
Other government grants
Local authority grants - 517,599 517,599 184,855
COVID-19 additional funding
DfE/ESFA
Catch-up premium - 301,530 301,530 -
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding - 216,922 216,922 -
Non-DfE/ESFA
Coronavirus job retention scheme grant - 31,482 31,482 42,638
Other COVID-19 funding - 21,990 21,990 -
- 571,924 571,924 42,638
Total funding - 22,284,879 22,284,879 17,386,930

Following the reclassification in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020/21 of some grants received from
the Department for Education and ESFA, the academy trust's funding for Universal Infant Free School
Meals and Pupil Premium is no longer reported under the Other DfE group grants heading, but as separate

lines under the Other DfE/ESFA grants heading. The prior year numbers have been reclassified.

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in the year from government support
schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under “Covid-19

additional funding”.

The academy furloughed some of its nursery, wraparound and catering staff under the government's CJRS.
The funding received relates to staff costs in respect of support staff which are included in note 11 below as

appropriate.
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5

Other trading activities

Hire of facilities
Catering income

Trip income

Other income

Investment income

Other investment income

Expenditure

Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs

- Allocated support costs
Grants - support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Fees payable to auditor for:

- Audit

- Other services

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds - funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

31,285 - 31,285 37,119
140,763 - 140,763 158,099

- 128,054 128,054 362,559

526,765 481,463 1,008,228 746,596
698,813 609,517 1,308,330 1,304,373
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

31 - 31 1,380

Non Pay Expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2021 2020
£ £ £ £

84,496 1,384,291 16,811,811 13,915,012

© 3,517,189 1,613,954 1,904,563 ~ 7,035,706 5,272,830
534,954 - 534,954 269,152
2,233,404 3,288,854 24,382,471 19,456,994
2021 2020

£ £

18,000 14,720

8,000 8,880

57,032 79,655

84,496 23,141

125,000 60,000
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8 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
* educational improvement; :

administrative support;

finance;

payroll-and HR services;

governance; and

statutory compliance.

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

Between 3% - 7% of General Annual Grant, based on OFSTED categorisation.

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2021 2020
£ £

All Saints CofE Junior School 47,533 47,240
St Joseph's CE Junior School (FKA Central CofE Academy) 42,690 40,668
Christ Church CofE Primary & Nursery Academy 89,621 81,741
St Catherine's College 166,283 158,711
St Leonard's CofE Primary Academy 102,931 95,672
St Paul's CofE Academy 123,307 115,555
The March CofE Primary School 40,761 39,869
DCAT Centre - -
St John's Meads CE Primary School 41,569 23,194
St Columba CE Primary School 56,762 41,462
St Joseph's Infant School (FKA Lancastrian Infant School) 15,326 -
Sedlescombe CE Primary School ' 30,072 -
St Blasius Shanklin CofE Primary Academy . ’ 19,663 -
St Francis Catholic and CofE Primary Academy 20,942 -
St James' CofE Primary Academy 36,400 -
833,860 644,112

9 Analysis of grant expenditure

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Improvements to diocesan property occupied
by the academy trust - 534,954 534,954 269,152
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Direct costs
Educational operations

Support costs
Educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ £

\ 361,838 16,449,973 16,811,811 13,915,012
158,214 7,412,446 7,570,660 5,541,982
520,052 23,862,419 24,382,471 19,456,994
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10 Charitable activities
Analysis of costs

Direct costs

Teaching and educational support staff costs
Depreciation

Technology costs

Educational supplies and services
Examination fees

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Support costs

Support staff costs

Technology costs

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Cleaning

Energy costs

Rent, rates and other occupancy costs
Insurance

Security and transport

Catering

Finance costs

Legal costs

Other support costs

Governance costs

(Continued)

2021 2020

£ £
15,395,668 12,555,243
84,496 23,141
46,733 ' -
642,858 630,085
89,493 99,128
403,009 244,856
149,554 362,559
16,811,811 13,915,012
3,629,716 2,631,641
252,098 248,388
1,225,565 736,869
309,875 213,237
289,309 261,781
121,244 96,397
116,172 92,151
86,743 58,886
605,351 569,758
125,000 60,000
436,028 329,930
332,272 211,642
41,287 31,302
7,670,660 5,541,982

Included within maintenance of premises and equipment is £534,954 (2020: £269,152) relating to
improvements to Diocesan property. Amounts have been funded by capital DfE funding.
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11  Staff
‘Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
2021 2020
£ £
Wages and salaries 13,255,462 10,736,927
Social security costs 1,189,581 954,265
Pension costs 4,090,098 3,237,371
Staff costs - employees ' 18,535,141 14,928,563
Agency staff costs . 289,521 198,785
Staff restructuring costs 35,551 24,120
18,860,213 15,151,468
Staff development and other staff costs 165,171 35,416
Total staff expenditure 19,025,384 15,186,884

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments ' 35,551 24,120

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments
The total value of non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments in year was £nil (2020: £nil).

Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2021 2020

Number Number

Teaching staff 253 188
Teaching support 210 160
Support staff 228 150
691 498
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12

13

Staff (Continued)

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2021 2020

Number Number

Between £60,001 - £70,000 12 6
Between £70,001 - £80,000 2 2
Between £80,001 - £90,000 3 2
Between £90,001 - £100,000 3 2
Between £100,001 - £110,000 1 -

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions
and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services
to the academy trust was £375,327 (2020: £367,505).

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

During the year ended 31 August 2021, no trustees received any remuneration or other benefits from an
employment with the Trust (2020: £nil).

Expenses totalling £108 were paid to 1 trustee in respect of travel and subsistence (2020. £210 - 3
trustees).

Trustees' and officers’ insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect
trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy trust business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one claim. The cover is
provided by the Trust's membership of the RPA scheme and the individual cost relating the the Trustees
cannot be reliably quantified. The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.
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15

Tangible fixed assets

Computer Fixtures, Motor Total

equipment fittings & vehicles
equipment
£ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September 2020 ' 55,112 56,814 11,250 123,176
Additions 230,454 57,495 - 287,949
At 31 August 2021 285,566 114,309 11,250 411,125
Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 6,465 37,918 4,219 48,602
Charge for the year 65,356 16,327 2,813 84,496
At 31 August 2021 71,821 54,245 7,032 133,098
Net book value
At 31 August 2021 213,745 60,064 4,218 278,027
At 31 August 2020 48,647 18,896 7,031 74,574

The freehold of the Trust land and buildings are owned by either the Diocese of Chichester (the Diocese
Board of Finance); the Diocese of Portsmouth and Winchester (the Diocesan Board of Finance); or by the
vicar and church wardens in Trust.

The Academy Trust holds its sites under a licence. The Supplemental Agreement includes the right for the
Diocesan Trustees to give not less than 2 years' written notice to the Trust and Secretary of State for
Education to terminate the agreement. No such written notice has been received as at the date of the
approval of the financial statements. In accordance with the terms of the Supplemental Agreement with
both the Diocese of Chichester and the Diocese of Portsmouth and Winchester, the Trust pays no rent. A
notional rent value has not been included in the financial statements as it cannot be reliably measured at
this stage.

The Diocese retain ownership and control of the schools' sites and so this does not meet the definition of a
fixed asset. As a result, no transfer on conversion has been recognised in respect of land and buildings in
the accounts for converted or re-brokered schools joining the Trust..

Debtors
2021 2020
£ £
Trade debtors 34,163 31,309
VAT recoverable 232,126 159,654
Other debtors 13,531 34,577
Prepayments and accrued income 360,866 280,332
640,686 505,872

- 47 -



DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

17

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2020

Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2021

The academy received the following income and funding in

into the next academic year:

Rates

Free School Meals

Trips

ESCC Central services block
Others

£ 63,594
£109,397
£ 63,583
£ 60,894
£ 6,702

2021 2020

£ £
486,959 516,147
326,621 236,037
150,251 162,592
432,105 321,650
1,395,936 1,226,426
2021 2020

£ £
304,170 201,903
201,903 252,044
(201,903) (252,044)
304,170 201,903
304,170 201,903

relation to 2020/21 which has been deferred
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Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 263,131 17,772,561 (17,379,530) - 656,162
Start up grants 13,797 190,000 (99,451) - 104,346
UIFSM - 343,152 (247,287) - 95,865
Pupil premium 356,148 1,469,179 (1,242,681) - 582,646
Catch-up premium - 301,530 (161,903) - 139,627
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19
funding - 216,922 (216,922) - -
Coronavirus job retention '
scheme grant - 31,482 (31,482) - -
Other Coronavirus funding - 21,990 (21,990) - -
Other DfE/ESFA grants 564,626 784,484 (819,442) - 529,668
Other government grants - 517,599 (517,599) - -
Teachers pay grant - 635,980 (635,980) - -
Other restricted funds 223,963 698,486 (1,178,147) 543,502 287,804
Pension reserve (5,932,000) - (4,466,000) (1,835,000) (12,233,000)
(4,510,335) 22,983,365 (27,018,414) (1,291,498) (9,836,882)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Inherited on conversion - - 78,049 (78,049) -
DfE group capital grants 668,152 914,097 (84,496) (233,107) 1,264,646
668,152 914,097 (6,447) (311,156) 1,264,646
Total restricted funds (3,842,183) 23,897,462 (27,024,861) (1,602,654) (8,572,236)
Unrestricted funds
General funds 676,317 709,466 26,795 (232,346) 1,180,232
Total funds (3,165,866) 24,606,928 (26,998,066) (1,835,000) (7,392,004)
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Funds (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to bé applied are as follows:

Restricted Revenue Finds

The General Annual Grant (GAG) represents the core funding for the educational activities of the schools
that has been provided to the Trust via the Education. and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) by the Department
of Education (DfE). Funds carried forward are to help meet the Academy Trust's running costs in future
years.

Start up grants; UIFSM; Pupil Premium; Catch-up Premium; Other DfE/ESFA Covid-19 funding; Other DfE/
ESFA grants; and Teachers' Pension grants represent funding received via the ESFA by the DfE. The
relevant restricted expenditure has been allocated through this fund. Grants are also used to fund the
Academy's operating costs. Unspent balances carried forward at the year end as above.

Other government and other restricted grants are to be used for funding the Academy's operating costs as
well as towards the costs of providing special educational needs.

Pension reserve
The pension reserve relates to the Academy Trust's share of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Restricted fixed asset fund

DFE group capital funds are to be used to improvement buildings and other faculties, including ICT or
capital repairs. The carried forward balance at the year end represents the net book value of tangible fixed
assets as detailed per note 14, £278,027, carried forward unspent DFC income of £254,438, and carried
forward unspent SCA funding of £732,181.

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted reserves represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

In.year transfers

In year transfers have been made in respect of the following:

LGPS actuarial valuations, £1,877,000

Unrestricted and restricted fund transfers to support fixed asset capital additions not funded by either DFC
income of SCA income, £232,346 unrestricted, £16,299 restricted.

£559,802 transferred from other restricted funds to the restricted fixed asset funds to account for non-
capitalised expenditure derived from Devolved Formula Capital, Condition Improvement Funding and
School Condition Allocation funding.
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Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start up grants

UIFSM

Pupil premium

Other DfE/ESFA grants
Other government grants
Teachers pay grant

Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion
DfE group capital grants

“Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds

Total funds

‘ Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

(Continued)

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020

£ £ £ £ £

235,423 14,390,668 (14,362,960) - 263,131
13,797 - - - 13,797

- 279,802 (279,802) - -

- 1,263,123 (906,975) - 356,148

788,006 706,665 (950,676) 20,631 564,626

- 227,493 (227,493) - -

- 519,179 (519,179) - -

143,044 704,264 (935,102) 311,757 223,963
(2,274,000) - (1,707,000) (1,951,000) (5,932,000)
(1,093,730) 18,091,194 (19,889,187) (1,618,612) (4,510,335)
- - 24,794 (24,794) -

244,340 679,380 5,679 (261,247) 668,152
244,340 679,380 30,473 (286,041) 668,152

(849,390) - 18,770,674 ~(19,858,714)" °(1,904,653)" (3,842,183) "™~

323,162 633,303 (233,801) (46,347) 676,317
(526,228) 19,403,877 (20,092,515) (1,951,000) (3,165,866)
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Funds

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows:

All Saints CofE Junior School

St Joseph's CE Junior School (FKA Central CofE Academy)
Christ Church CofE Primary & Nursery Academy

St Catherine's College

St Leonard's CofE Primary Academy

St Paul's CofE Academy

The March CofE Primary School

DCAT Centre

St John's Meads CE Primary School

St Columba CE Primary School

St Joseph's Infant Schoo! (FKA Lancastrian Infant School)
Sedlescombe CE Primary School

St Blasius Shanklin CofE Primary Academy

St Francis Catholic and CofE Primary Academy -

St James' CofE Primary Academy

Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total funds

(Continued)

2021 2020
£ £
173,608 85,673
(55,301) (40,572)
441,154 295,597
886,572 426,785
287,237 356,285
187,822 75,751
130,393 114,217
797,221 599,575 .
93,790 87,545
57,806 97,126
40,086 -
168,778 -
116,788 -
168,105 -
82,291 -
3,576,350 2,097,982
1,264,646 668,152
(12,233,000)  (5,932,000)
(7,392,004) (3,165,866)

St Joseph's CE Junior School (FKA Central CofE Academy) is carrying a net deficit of £55,301. The school
was in special measures prior to joining the trust. This has significantly impacted on pupil numbers over the
past few years and as a result the school is currently in a deficit situation. The school has since been taken
out of Special Measures and pupil numbers have begun to increase and is expected to rise over the next 2
years. The trust has worked closely with the school to improve finances and over the next 3 years the
school is working hard to produce in-year surplus balances to reduce the historical deficit.
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18 Funds (Continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £

All Saints CofE Junior

School 784,987 91,717 64,039 131,812 1,072,555 1,071,100
St Joseph's CE Junior

School (FKA Central CofE

Academy) 613,954 60,455 36,718 170,467 881,594 833,652
Christ Church CofE

Primary & Nursery

Academy 1,686,113 178,851 168,180 227,257 2,260,401 2,296,289
St Catherine's College 4,335,684 808,247 452,934 780,177 6,377,042 6,192,933
St Leonard's CofE Primary

Academy 1,515,397 152,671 79,630 427,036 2,174,734 2,013,071

St Paul's CofE Academy 2,246,444 290,353 67,323 488,658 3,092,778 2,989,562
The March CofE Primary

School 690,169 61,335 56,417 131,176 939,097 958,467
DCAT Centre 327,848 493,440 174,374 773,048 1,768,710 1,027,867
St John's Meads CE -

Primary School 687,362 78,384 33,576 202,902 1,002,224 510,334
St Columba CE Primary

School - 723,209 85,660 - 74,217 140,640 1,023,726 682,579

St Joseph's Infant School
(FKA Lancastrian Infant

School) 258,549 53,209 17,693 77,629 407,080 -
Sedlescombe CE Primary

School 536,361 62,440 35,269 86,890 720,960 -
St Blasius Shanklin CofE

Primary Academy 237,549 44,356 21,639 46,873 350,417 -
St Francis Catholic and

CofE Primary Academy 300,369 58,837 25,891 47,790 432,887 -
St James' CofE Primary

Academy 451,675 58,762 23,741 83,592 617,770 -

15,395,670 2,578,717 1,331,641 3,815947 23,121,975 18,575,854
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20

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 278,027 278,027
Current assets 1,180,232 3,792,054 986,619 5,958,905
Creditors falling due within one year - (1,395,936) - (1,395,936)
Defined benefit pension liability - (12,233,000) - (12,233,000)
Total net assets 1,180,232 (9,836,882) 1,264,646 (7,392,004)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds General Fixed asset Funds
£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 are

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 74,574 74,574
Current assets 676,318 2,648,090 593,578 3,917,986
Creditors falling due within one year - (1,226,426) - (1,226,426)
Defined benefit pension liability - (5,932,000) - (5,932,000)
Total net assets 676,318 (4,510,336) 668,152 (3,165,866)

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by East Sussex County Council and West Sussex County
Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019.

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or the end of the financial year.
Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies
and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a
change of contract, although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both thé member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

-54 -



DIOCESE OF CHICHESTER ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

20

Pension and similar obligations : (Continued)

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education in March 20189.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

* an increase in employer rates from 16.48% to 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08%
employer administration charge)

¢ the rise in contribution delayed from 1 April to September 2019

* total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,000 million giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,100 million

* an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

* there will be funding from the DFE for the financial year 2019/20 to help maintained schools and
academies meet the additional costs resulting from the scheme valuation. Funding for 2020/21
onwards will be discussed as part of the next Spending Review round.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.
The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £1,959,189 (2020: £1,643,331).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future
years are as follows:

West Sussex:
Employers 21.2% (Central CE Academy); 23.7% (The March CE Primary School)
Employees 5-9% average across all West Sussex school sites

East Sussex: :
Employers 24.4% (all East Sussex school sites)
Employees 5-9% average across all East Sussex school sites

Hampshire (St Columba CE Primary Academy):
Employers 18.9%
Employees 5-9%
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Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

As described in note 26 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, being the
employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who
joined the scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion
represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the academy trust at the balance
sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2021 2020

£ £
Employer's contributions . 1,052,000 861,000
Employees' contributions 272,000 192,000
Total contributions 1,324,000 1,053,000
Principal actuarial assumptions 2021 2020

% %
Rate of increase in salaries 3.5 2.7
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 29 2.2
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.7 17

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Years Years

Retiring today
- Males 22.3 22.3
- Females 243 245
Retiring in 20 years
- Males 236 235
- Females 261 26.1
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate -0.5% _ 3,870,000 2,415,000
Salary increase rate +0.5% 280,000 216,000
Mortality assumption + 1 year 5,154,000
Pension increase rate +0.5% 3,520,000 2,158,000
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Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme

Equities

Bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £2,160,000 (2020: £3,688,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest income

Interest cost

Benefit changes, curtailments and settliements gains or losses

Total operating charge
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2020

Obligations acquired on conversion
Current service cost

Interest cost

Employee contributions

Actuarial loss

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2021

(Continued)
2021 2020
Fairvalue  Fair value
£ £
13,534,470 8,759,600
3,348,140 2,302,470
1,383,740 957,390
876,650 350,540
19,143,000 12,370,000
2021 2020
£ £
1,051,000 798,000
- 11,000
(243,000)  (149,000)
368,000 209,000
- (11,000)
1,176,000 858,000
2021
£
18,302,000
6,761,000
2,112,000
359,000
272,000
3,752,000
(182,000)
31,376,000
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20 Pension and similar obligations (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets
2021
£
At 1 September 2020 12,370,000
Assets acquired on conversion 3,471,000
Interest income 243,000
Actuarial gain 1,917,000
Employer contributions 1,052,000
Employee contributions 272,000
Benefits paid (182,000)
At 31 August 2021 19,143,000
Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities
2021 2020
£ £
Net expenditure for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial
activities) (2,391,138) (688,638)
Adjusted for:
Net deficit on conversion to academy 79,232 121,431
Net deficit on transfer of academy in the trust 2,536,363 528,091
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (914,097) (679,380)

22

Investment income receivable (31) (1,380)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 1,051,000 798,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 125,000 60,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 84,496 23,141

(Increase) in debtors (134,814) (44,814)

Increase in creditors 169,510 242,275

Stocks, debtors and creditors transferred on conversion 23,201 (17,937)

Net cash provided by operating activities 628,722 340,789
Analysis of changes in net funds

1 September Cash flows 31 August

2020 2021

£ £ £

Cash 3,412,114 1,906,105 5,318,219
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24

25

26

Long-term commitments, including operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases was: :

2021 : 2020

£

Amounts due within one year 50,930 57,032
Amounts due in two and five years 72,478 38,810
123,408 95,842

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019
and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party
transactions took place in the financial period.

No trustees' received any remuneration in the year. Details of trustees' expenses are disclosed per note 12.
Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it-being-wound up while he-or-she is-a member, orwithin one year after-he or she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before
he or she ceases to be a member.

Conversion to an academy

As detailed below, these schools converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all
the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust from
East Sussex and West Sussex County Councils for £nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate
headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net loss in the statement of financial activities
as charitable activities — transfer from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities.

Academy Location Date of conversion
St Joseph's Infant School (FKA Lancastrian  Chichester 1 December 2020
Infant School)

Sedlescombe CE Primary School Battle 1 December 2020
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27

Conversion to an academy (Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

funds General Fixed asset 2021

Net assets transferred: £ £ £

Cash 177,831 63,509 41,428 282,768
Pension scheme deficit - (362,000) - (362,000)
177,831 (298,491) 41,428 (79,232)

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

. funds General Fixed asset 2021

Funds surplus/(deficit) transferred: £ £ £ £
Fixed assets funds - - 41,428 41,428
LA budget funds 177,831 - - 177,831
LGPS pension funds - (362,000) - (362,000)
Other funds . - 63,509 - 63,509
177,831 (298,491) 41,428 (79,232)

Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust

St Blasius Shanklin CofE Primary Academy

On 1 May 2021 St Blasius Shanklin CofE Primary Academy was rebrokered to the Trust from Portsmouth
and Winchester Diocesan Academies Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to
Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust on rebrokerage.

The rebrokerage has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net loss in the statement of
financial activities as donations — transfer of existing academy trust.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities.

Transfer in

recognised
Net liabilities acquired £
Sundry Debtors 10,551
Cash and cash equivalents 103,568
Pension scheme (638,000)
Total net liabilities (523,881)
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27 Transfer of existing academies into the academy trust (Continued)
There were no fair value adjustments required to the values reported by the transferring trust.

St Francis Catholic and Church of England Primary Academy

On 1 May 2021 St Francis Catholic and Church of England Primary Academy was rebrokered to the Trust
from Portsmouth and Winchester Diocesan Academies Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were
transferred to Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust on rebrokerage.

The rebrokerage has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net loss in the statement of
financial activities as donations — transfer of existing academy trust.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities.

Transfer in

recognised
Net liabilities acquired , £
Other tangible fixed assets 10,244
Sundry Debtors ) 15,840
Deferred income (29,731)
Cash and cash equivalents 167,911
Pension scheme (798,000)
Total net liabilities (633,736)

There were no fair value adjustments required to the values reported by the transferring trust.
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St James' Church of England Primary Academy

On 1 May 2021 St James' Church of England Primary Academy was rebrokered to the Trust from
Portsmouth and Winchester Diocesan Academies Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were
transferred to Diocese of Chichester Academy Trust on rebrokerage.

The rebrokerage has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net loss in the statement of
financial activities as donations — transfer of existing academy trust.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of financial activities.

Transfer in

recognised
Net liabilities acquired £
Other tangible fixed assets 26,377
Sundry Debtors 24,960
Cash and cash equivalents 60,336
Pension scheme (1,492,000)

Total net liabilities (1,380,327)

There were no fair value adjustments required to the values reported by the transferring trust.
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